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 Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission (RTC)  
Santa Cruz County Passenger Rail Study –Professional Services RFP 

 
Questions and Answers 

(As of March 28, 2014 – including questions from the pre-proposer meeting.  
Updates to be posted periodically online at: http://sccrtc.org/about/opportunities/rfp/) 

Some acronyms are noted at end of document. 
 

1. Q: Will there be a need to have individuals ride the bus routes and conduct a survey directly 
with the bus riders or is the information collected electronically?  
 
A: Identifying and collecting data needed to support this rail study, including analysis of how 
different rail service scenarios will achieve study goals and how different scenarios could be 
integrated with bus service is a component of the scope of work. Whether or not individuals 
will ride the bus routes and conduct a survey directly with the bus riders is not specifically 
called out as a task, though may be identified as a data need by the consultant team in Task 4. 
(3/14) 
 
Appended 3/17: Data from a joint Metro and RTC rider survey and the California Household 
Travel Survey may also have useful information for the study. We do not anticipate new 
counts will be needed. The study may assume/identify some general conditions required to 
make service feasible, based on information from other rail systems, such as density near 
stations, fares/price points, types feeder bus service that would be needed if employer sites 
are more than a certain distance from a station, headways. RTC also has maps of some of the 
key origins and destinations, including population density and the location of major 
employers. 
 

2. Q: Is there a budget or estimate for the RFP Santa Cruz County Passenger Rail Study project. 
 If so, what is it?  

 
A: As noted in the section of the RFP titled “Scope of Services and Compensation,” a 
maximum of $180,000 is available for the consultant services outlined in this RFP. 
http://www.sccrtc.org/wp‐content/uploads/2010/09/RFP_SantaCruzRailStudy2014.pdf (3/14) 

 

3. Q: Who is responsible for legal notice placement of the Subject solicitation?  
 
A: The RTC project manager included a legal notice of the Request for Proposals in the San 
Jose Mercury News on March 4, 2014. (3/14) 
 

4. Q: On page 5, item 8. References. Are the 3 references required of each team member or just 
the prime?  
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A: 3 References are for the prime only, not each team member, though references should 
have experience with at least some of the key team members. (3/17) 
 

5. Q: Attachment E: Sample Cost Proposal. Can we assume RTC wants to see this form for 
each team member—prime and subconsultants—and a roll-up for the team representing our 
total costs? (3/17) 
 
A: Yes, please provide this detailed information for all personnel as well as a roll-up for the 
team representing cost per task consistent with your proposal.  
 

6. Q: Has thought been given to having a citizens and/or technical advisory committee for this 
project? Reference is made to a “project team” of the RTC, METRO, and SC&MB/Iowa 
Pacific, which perhaps will function as a TAC. 
 
A: In addition to the core project team of RTC, METRO, SC&MB, and Caltrans, the RTC 
has identified several entities to participate in review of technical information in the study, as 
well as the administrative draft. RTC staff will also be meeting with several stakeholder 
groups, including community leaders representing business and public interests and local 
jurisdictions throughout development of the study and providing information to the 
consultant team on input received. (3/17) 

 
Questions from the Pre-Proposer Conference 
7. Q: Does RTC do its own ridership forecasting or is that part of the consultants work? 

 
A: That would be part of the consultant work. We do not have a model available to do this. 
The regional model from AMBAG is primarily focused on highways.  
 

8. Q: What freight service is now on the line and projected into the future?  
 
A: Freight trains are currently limited to the Watsonville area, not past milepost 3.5. Freight 
rail service is currently provided for construction materials, agricultural products and a 
biofuels plant. Into the future, once bridge structure work is complete, additional construction 
materials or other goods may be shipped by rail. The operator (Santa Cruz and Monterey Bay 
Railway/Iowa Pacific) has identified several options for increasing freight service. For the 
purpose of planning potential passenger service, consultants should assume that there could 
be freight service along the entire length of the line in the future.  
 

9. Q: Is RTC looking at temporal separation or FRA compliant equipment so you can have a 
mix of freight and passenger service? 
 
A: Because it is feasible either way, this would be part of the recommendations developed by 
the consultant team. However, since the line goes through residential areas, noise 
considerations should be factored into temporal separation proposals.  During the December 
2012 seasonal recreational service from the Boardwalk going north, trains passed through 7 
crossings and neighbors clearly expressed concerns about horn noise.  
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10. Q: Regarding Task 7 Implementation, understanding the limited scope/budget of the study, 
what would you anticipate is the overall context for implementing service and when? 
 
A: There is interest in seeing some sort of low cost service implemented in the near term, if 
found to be feasible. Service proposed needs to be within the capacity of the community to 
support. “Gold plated” service is not under consideration. The draft Regional Transportation 
Plan (RTP), currently out for public comment, assumes that by 2016 new revenues for the 
overall transportation system will include a sales tax measure and Vehicle Registration Fee.  
The package of priority transportation projects includes a placeholder project for about $83 
million towards rail service through the year 2035.  The intent is that these funds would 
leverage other state and federal funds. As such, the RTC is looking for creative and practical 
approaches to identify how passenger service could begin modestly and grow based on 
demand.     
 
There may be opportunities, based on consultants’ projections and what comes out of this 
plan, to implement a variety of operating scenarios which could include use of the shortline 
operator, transit district or other service operators.  
 
The consultant team will also identify next steps for implementation, such as environmental 
review, types of funding, and track modifications that may be needed under different 
scenarios.  
 

11. Q: Elaborate on how the outreach will work in terms of what part the consultant and the RTC 
will play and how it fits together. 
 
A: RTC staff will be responsible for leading and coordinating the public outreach activities, 
including arranging meetings and responding to inquiries from members of the public during 
development of the study. However, RTC anticipates that the consultant would present 
technical information at meetings with stakeholders three times and at three public meetings, 
in addition to three presentations to the RTC board (see # 16). These meetings would cover 
the scoping, service scenarios, technical analysis, the draft plan and final plan. The RTC staff 
will meet with community leaders to get input on the scope of the study, including issues, 
constraints and opportunities to analyze.  For the public meetings, RTC staff will do the 
outreach, advertising, logistics and recording, with the consultant presenting technical 
materials.  
 
There are an abundance of ideas and opportunities for the line, but given the limited budget, 
there will be many ideas that will not be possible to study in this report. The scope of the 
study is passenger rail transit.  
 

12. Q: In terms of outreach collateral, such as graphics and maps, will the consultant be expected 
to produce those materials for public meetings? 
 
A: RTC staff will work with the consultant to determine graphic materials appropriate for the 
public meetings. RTC may work collaboratively with the consultant team to produce 
outreach materials.  
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13. Q: Are there schedule considerations regarding other rail service planning that are underway 

(such as Capitol Corridor, Coast Daylight or High Speed Rail) that may impact the schedule 
for this study or implementation of passenger service?  
 
A: Planning efforts being done by other entities for other rail service will not impact the 
schedule for this study. The schedule for this study is based in part on the Caltrans planning 
grant. Given questions from the community regarding the rail line, RTC would like to 
complete the study quickly to provide ridership and cost information about feasible service 
scenarios. As far as implementation of rail service scenarios analyzed in the study, it is 
possible that the feasibility of some scenarios could be dependent on implementation of 
connecting passenger rail services. 
 

14. Q: What is the name of the trestle bridge that is being replaced? 
 
A: La Selva Beach Bridge 

 
15. Q: Please elaborate the role the partners will have in the study. Will they be reviewing 

documents and will they be available to the consultant team? 
 
A: SC&MB, Santa Cruz METRO and Caltrans will be available to the consultant team, 
though their time is more limited than RTC staff time. They will review key elements of the 
study, including some of the technical information and draft documents, but will not review 
every piece of information. It is important to ensure that proposed service on the line is 
compatible and coordinates with the bus transit and short line rail operations. The consultant 
team may meet with partners and stakeholders during goal setting/back casting stage of study 
development. Partners and stakeholders will provide input on which scenarios to analyze in 
the study, whittling the number of possible scenarios down to a few for the technical 
analysis. The RTC board, with public input, will also be asked to sign-off on the scenarios to 
be analyzed (see also #16). Peers from other transportation entities will also be expected to 
provide input on the technical analysis.  
 

16. Q: It sounds like the consultant will primarily be working with the technical staff and partner 
agencies, as well as the RTC board. Not going to their council meetings. Is that correct? 
 
A: Yes. The consultant scope of work includes three presentations to the RTC board and does 
not include presentations to the other agency boards. However, RTC may present information 
from the study to councils and community groups.  

 
17. Q: What level of interest is there from UCSC and other entities north on the line for future 

connectivity? 
 
A: UCSC and other entities will participate in community leader and stakeholder meetings 
and are interested in getting more people on transit. Bus service to UCSC has very high 
ridership rates (approx. 3 million rides per year) and connector bus service from potential rail 
stations to major destinations such as the University should be evaluated. Parking is tightly 



Santa Cruz County Passenger Rail Study RFP – Questions & Answers: Page 5 

regulated at UCSC encouraging high transit use and there is data regarding origins of staff 
and students traveling to the University, as well as traffic counts.  
 

Questions and Answers since pre-proposer conference (posted online 3/28): 
 
18. Q: Professional Liability insurance amount is blank (Section 7 of Example Contract). Is there 

a specified minimum for this contract?  Could you reiterate the insurance requirements 
specific to this study? 
 
A: Professional Liability (E & O) Insurance with limits not less than $1,000,000.00 (one 
million dollars) each occurrence and in the aggregate.  Coverage must at a minimum apply to 
negligent Errors and Omissions arising out of professional services and performed under the 
contract. 
 

19. Q: Some small businesses and some DBE’s bill by fully loaded hourly rates only. Will this 
contract require small and disadvantaged businesses to submit audited or estimated overhead 
rates? Can any exceptions be made to this practice? 
 
A: These questions have been forwarded to Caltrans Audits and Division of Mass 
Transportation. A definitive response may not be available until after proposals are due, but 
will be resolved prior to finalization of the contract. 
  

20. Q: The one-year budget for this project was stated to be roughly $180k, do you plan to 
choose one consultant firm to perform all of the work? 
 
A: The total budget for the consultant contract to conduct this study, regardless of the number 
of months it takes to complete is $180,000. We anticipate awarding a contract to just one 
firm, though they could have a team that includes a prime and subconsultants.  
 

21. Q: A contractual agreement based upon terms as suggested in the agreement would usually 
feature, among other things certain principles and industry standards of professional practice 
which would govern the type of services provided by our firm hereunder, such as standards 
which provide for waiver of consequential damages, a reasonable standard of care and 
indemnification obligations to the extent of our proportional negligence. However, it appears 
that not all of the important standards of practice are included with specialty and detail in the 
project contractual documents. 
 
As such, we believe it important that these significant principles of professional practice are 
contained in the Agreement. In support of that objective, we respectfully request that the text 
to be agreed is added to the agreement. 
 
A: RTC and its legal counsel would consider this request as part of development of the final 
contract/agreement for services with the highest ranking consultant. The contract provided 
with the RFP is a sample agreement. Final terms of the agreement must be consistent with 
terms set forth by the funding entity (Caltrans and FTA). If mutually agreeable terms are not 
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reached with the highest ranked firm, the RTC reserves the right to terminate negotiations 
and negotiate with the next highest ranked firm.  

 
22. Q: According to RFP directions for the Santa Cruz County Passenger Rail Study due April 

2nd, you would like an electronic email copy of the proposal in PDF and Word/Excel format. 
I’m having issues getting our Word format of the proposal down to an email acceptable size. 
Would you accept a PDF of the technical proposal and the cost proposal in PDF and Excel 
form, or is the Word format crucial?  
 
A: Emailing a PDF file only is fine. We will modify the cover of the RFP to indicate this. 
Also, electronic documents can be submitted via CD or flash drive with your proposal. 

 
Agency Acronyms: 
AMBAG – Association of Monterey Bay Area Governments 
FRA – Federal Railroad Administration 
FTA – Federal Transit Administration 
Metro – Santa Cruz Metropolitan Transit District 
RTC or SCCRTC – Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission 
SC&MB – Santa Cruz & Monterey Bay Railway, the local brand of shortline railroad operator 

Iowa Pacific Holdings.  
TAC – Technical Advisory Committee 
TAMC – Transportation Agency for Monterey County 
UCSC – University of California, Santa Cruz 
 
Additional information on the RFP is online at: http://sccrtc.org/about/opportunities/rfp/.   
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